ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 28, 2007
3:37 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senator Bert Stednan, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Lesil MGQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

Senat or Thomas WAgoner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 104
"An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act;
establishing the Alaska @Gasline |nducenent Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline Inducenent
Act coordinator; naking conform ng anendnments; and providing for
an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 104

SHORT TI TLE: NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQIECT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 05/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (S) RES, JUD, FIN

03/ 14/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 14/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 16/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 16/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 19/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 19/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 21/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2007



03/ 21/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 21/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 21/ 07 (S) RES AT 5:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 21/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 21/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 22/ 07 (S) RES AT 4:15 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

03/ 22/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 23/ 07 (S) RES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 23/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 23/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 24/ 07 (S) RES AT 1: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 24/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 24/ 07 (S) RES AT 3: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 24/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 26/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 26/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 26/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 27/ 07 (S) RES AT 3: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 27/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 28/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Comm ssi oner Tom |lrw n

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)
Juneau AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions

Commi ssioner Patrick Galvin
Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions

Deputy Conmi ssioner Marty Rutherford
Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions
Kevi n Banks, petrol eum market anal yst
Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l able for questions

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2007



CHAIR CHARLIE HUGA NS called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:37:35 PM Al nenbers were
present at the call to order.

SB 104- NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE PROQJECT

3:38:52 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS announced SB 104 to be up for consideration, and
said that the question is where to go on how to conmercialize
Al aska's gas.

3:39: 09 PM

Department  of Revenue (DOR) Comm ssioner Patrick @Galvin,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Conmm ssioner Tom Irw n,
and Deputy Conm ssioner Marty Rutherford Departnment of the DNR
i ntroduced t hensel ves.

3:40: 46 PM

COW SSIONER IRWN thanked the conmttee for its tinme, and
cormented on the appropriateness and preparedness of A A and
the people working on it; the state has framed its position
well, and is telling different businesses they are all going to
be treated fairly. Leverage is the big issue. The previous
adm nistration showed how a lot of failures can happen; tine
limts are dangerous.

3:45:17 PM

He remarked that a lot of the producer presenters really would
like to take AG A apart so that the state would go back to the
previous admnistration's failed negotiations. However, they
refuse to define the issues, which they should do as the
conpani es’ heads. Fiscal stability is not a termwth an obvious
definition. The TransCanada testinmony was interesting and
encour agi ng because that conpany was starting to |everage the
state, and it doesn’'t want nore noney that will create a greater
risk. Another mmjor player has also said it doesn't want too
much noney fromthe state.

3:49:09 PM
He referenced Enbridge's coments regarding failed open seasons,

and said it’s inmportant to remenber that that can happen and the
process shouldn’'t be ended there. If AGA is mnimzed the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2007



conpetition for the pipes goes away, and the state will be hurt
severely. Each conpany is talking about the risks versus the
rewards; a lot has been |earned about different tariffs and
expansi on. The state needs to keep an eye on the conpetition.

3:51: 38 PM

He reenphasized that he is supportive of AQdA and the
admnistration is wlling to work wth the legislature on
creating healthy conpetition

3:52:19 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said he didn't have nmuch to add; he wasn't
surprised by testinmony fromthe interested parties. AG A needs a
few clarifying amendnents

3:54:21 PM
MS. RUTHERFORD said she was there to respond to questions.
3:55:02 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said that the bill was to be heard by three
different conmttees, and each should nake as nuch progress as
possi ble. He referenced the inducenments and said that no entity
but the adm nistration says they are a nust-have; that’s a point
of contention that needs to be addressed.

3:55:51 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if it would be alright to begin the
di scussi on section by section.

CHAIR HUGE NS replied that that was the plan
3:56:40 PM

COW SSIONER GALVIN said that the $500 mllion is nmeant to
i nduce sonme behavior; TransCanada said it did not see the val ue
in the inducenents in ternms of required FERC certification. The
previous day TransCanada had clarified its position: while from
the corporate perspective there isn't value in noving beyond an
unsuccessful open season, the state would have value in noving
from open season to certification. The state needs the |everage
on the producers to nove through an open season and on to a
certificate; soneone needs to be commtted to nove the project

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2007



forward and renove uncertainties. A participant can’t be able to
drive the state into a |leverage position by virtue of an
unsuccessful open season.

3:59:41 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said he didn’t see any conpanies saying they would
go on to pursue a FERC certificate.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the adm nistration still needed
to hear from MdAnerica on that issue. TransCanada did not say
it wouldn't pursue a FERC certificate; it said it would rather
let the state figure out how to get further.

4:01: 21 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS said that TransCanada had said it would refuse to
pursue a certificate in a theoretical situation

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N expl ained that TransCanada is maximzing its
position; every conpany wants to do so. The state can't just
roll over on its ideas. Conpanies have to be pushed to accept
risks.

4:03:35 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the $500 nmillion is a nust-have
for the adm nistration, and if the anount shoul d change.

M5. RUTHERFORD answered that it is a nust-have, and expl ained
that no | esser anmount woul d do.

4:06: 00 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N added that the state wouldn’'t want to commt
the full amount if a conpany is willing to go without the noney.
What the state anticipates is a change in the conpany’s

perceived risk after open season; the state can't allow an
unsuccessful open season stop this project.

4:06: 34 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said no conmpany has testified that it needs the
$500 million.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2007



SENATOR MCGUI RE said she heard TransCanada say the inducenents
would factor into its decision; the conpany’s concern was Wth
post - open season risk-sharing rates.

4.:07: 35 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said his recollection was that the inducenents
weren’'t needed, but the conmpany woul d take them The issue is if
the conpany is to be forced to go beyond a failed open season
and the business wants to termnate. If an arbitrator rules for
the state, the business partner would pull out and repay the
state. He asked if that scenario would be correct under the
definition of abandonnent.

4:08: 30 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said he heard TransCanada say it did not
want to have to commt to go from an unsuccessful open season to
FERC certification. If they were required to do so, the $500
mllion woul d be necessary.

SENATOR STEDVAN said he wunderstood differently; TransCanada
wants to work until it was sure there would be a good open
season.

4:11:45 PM

COW SSIONER GALVIN said $500 mllion was enough to keep
TransCanada going to a certification;, AG A requires a conpany to
commt at the tine of the licensing.

4:13:10 PM

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked if a conpany would have to replace noney
from the state and hand over docunents if it |eaves a project
consi dered econonmically feasible by an arbitrator.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that in such a scenario the conpany
would still be bound by the license. The state would recover
nmoney, work product, and any damages available by law in that
case.

4:14: 44 PM
SENATOR WAGONER said over the years he has heard how gas is
recycled to keep oil production up, but he renenbers that there

is crossover point where the gas needs to be shipped; he asked
for comment on that.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2007



4:16:26 PM

COM SSIONER IRWN said that it's okay for the state to stand
for what it wants.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said $500 million is a shocking anmpbunt to
many Al askans; he asked what kind of noney the state was
incentivizing in the last contract.

IVB. RUTHERFORD replied that analysis showed that t he
quantifiabl e val ues were over $10 billion in 2005 doll ars.

4:18: 25 PM
CHAIR HUGE NS said the | egislature never voted on that.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said the only reason to bring the matter up
is because it's an inportant |esson about what happens when the
state has to neet the producer's demands. The state needs
| ever age. Conpanies wll recognize the value of booking
reserves.

SENATOR STEDMAN said nothing in the bill requires the applicant
to build by a specific date; that would result in a failed
process. He asked if other players besides the nmain three could
finance the project, and why the state wouldn’t deal with them

4:22:35 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied that the three producers are the
only ones that have sufficient gas to finance the project;
they're at the point of seeing how nuch nore they can get from
the state. The dial ogue needs to be changed, and the state needs
to tell the producers that they won’'t be the only three entities
i nvol ved.

4:24:59 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS remarked that that was an inportant conversation
and asked the presenters to talk about how a licensee will be

encouraged to nove beyond an open season.

4:26: 50 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2007



COM SSIONER GALVIN said the state needs to require FERC
certification; the project can’'t be characterized as sinply
getting to an open season.

4:27:45 PM

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked Commi ssioner Galvin to restate why the
state wouldn't want to |eave the process open for a conmpany not
wanting to build a pipeline under AG A

4:28:32 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said that was a good question; AGA is an
i nducenent, but not an exclusive opportunity to build a line. If
anot her project nmaterialized, there are opportunities within the
existing state framework to for the applicant to conme forward. A
project that neets AGA s requirenents is in the state's
interests and therefore should be given the benefits therein.
AG A doesn’t need to provide inducenents for a non-AG A project.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that the inducenments could be given to a
party not operating under AG A He asked why the state woul dn’t
want to encourage an entity that cane up with novel process.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that the authority for the conm ssioner to
provide a process for any developnent project is already in
statute.

4:32:38 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS referenced a section of AQ A and asked what kind
of tinmeline the extensi on has.

COW SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the adm nistration established
a five-year tineline for getting to FERC  certificate
application; approval takes 18 nonths. There nay be sone
addi tional work necessary during the application consideration

period. The noney the state wll spend is capped at $500
mllion.
4:35:55 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked Commi ssioner Galvin to explain a section of
the bill.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that it applies to the risk profile
on the project and how nuch obligation the state will take on in

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2007



terms of successful or unsuccessful open seasons. The state's

not expecting that no one will conplain about the risk-sharing
in AA An 80/20 split is as far as the state is wlling to go;
it will create maxi mum potential participation. The best way to

maxi m ze the state’s opportunity is to not dictate the terms; it
wi |l depend on the results of the open season.

4:38:31 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said he thought 80 percent was a little too high
and it seenms the state got Ileveraged. This is a critical
juncture; it's a high-risk situation. A producer has said it
woul dn’t even be willing to spend the 20 percent. His concern is
that the state could be |leveraged in nmultiple ways.

COM SSIONER  GALVIN said the admnistration has the sane
concern; the only way to avoid being leveraged is to get the
commitment up-front through the requirenents in the application.
The pot needs to be sweet enough that ©pipeline conpanies
participate, but it can't be so generous that after a failed
open season the producers ask for whatever they want. AG A has
enough inducenents that a pipeline conpany will commt through
an unsuccessful open season.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that the licensee could also just wal k away
fromthe deal

COM SSIONER GALVIN said that if a conpany does so it risks
| osing everything related to the project.

4. 42: 45 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how there could be a failed open
season on an economcally feasible project, and what the outcone
of such woul d be.

4:44: 00 PM

COM SSIONER ITRWN said nothing would preclude another open
season. In the neantinme, the country needs gas and that’s in
Al aska’s favor.

4:45: 01 PM

COMM SSIONER GALVIN said a lot of different options are out
there; if everyone goes to an open season and then stops, the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -9- March 28, 2007



producers are going to expect a lot from the state to keep
goi ng.

4:46: 45 PM

M5. RUTHERFORD comrented that the producers are reasonable
economc players in terms of AQA |everage. They will
participate appropriately as long as the state doesn't continue
to make itself vulnerable to | everaging.

COM SSIONER IRWN clarified that he respects the conpanies;
they have a | ot of good enpl oyees. The problemis that recycling
the gas i s becom ng expensi ve.

4:49: 03 PM

KEVIN BANKS, Director, Division of Gl and Gas, DNR, introduced
hi msel f.

4:49: 25 PM

SENATOR WAGONER asked how much gas is being recycled on the
North Slope now and how nuch longer can it be recycled wthout
affecting oil production.

MR. BANKS replied that Prudhoe Bay is recycling six to eight bcf
per day. Residual gas is being used to recover and nmintain
pressure; mssible injection is scheduled to stop in 2015. He
said he didn't know what the exact tinmeline would be, but at
that tinme the producers will want to sell the gas.

4:51:50 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said he had previously testified about the
optic rate, and no one had asked the producers for a turnoff
date. They don't have enough information to say whether the rate
should be increased or changed, and there is a risk that they
coul d damage the reservoir eventually. He has requested that the
AOCCC | ook at the issue.

4:53: 33 PM

MR. BANKS reiterated that the adm nistration has requested that
t he AOGCC exam ned the issue.

4:55:26 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 28, 2007



SENATOR STEDMAN said there’s a reasonable <chance that a
consortium woul d be put together, and asked how the | egislature
would give a conpany $500 nillion when everyone knows the
project will be extrenely profitable.

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said the $500 million creates conpetition,
and the chance that the producers would lose their control of
the project. ldeally the perceived threat of conpetition wll
drive a producer to agree to a project that neets Al aska's
needs.

4:56:51 PM

M5. RUTHERFORD said that if the $500 mllion does what it’s
intended to, it will be noney well-spent. Everyone will benefit
fromlower tariffs.

4:58:12 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that there are nyriad ways that could raise
costs. The FERC has said it wouldn't be overly enthusiastic
about having a conpany continue to certification.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said there are tight requirenents for
getting to open season and FERC application. The state has to
conpare that to the current situation, with no tineline. The up-
front tinmeline is driving the applicants to decide how they’ Il
commt to the project. The five-year stipulation is in case the
producers’ gas still isn't comritted to the project, which is
t he worst-case scenari o.

He added that pursuing a FERC certificate without conmtnents is
obviously an unfavorable path. The adm nistration is trying to
avoid that by providing inducenents in the initial open season.
Even worse than that would be an unsuccessful open season
followed by the participants wanting the state to bail them out.
The requirenment of FERC certification is a strategy to avoid
this.

5:02: 33 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that AG A could end up costing the state
billions.

COM SSI ONER GALVI N responded that Chair Huggins was conparing
AG A to a non-existent project; there’s no basis for conparison.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- March 28, 2007



CHAIR HUGA NS replied that he agreed; he just wanted to point
out the high cost.

5:03:39 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said he has gotten the sane inpression from his
nmeetings; the FERC didn't give the inpression they would like to
go through an open season to a certificate.

M5. RUTHERFORD agreed that no one is very excited about that;
however the FERC does recognize that keeping that door open
would be in the state's and the nation’s interest.

5:05: 22 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said that he wanted to see historical pricing
data on Henry Hub Index gas prices over the |ast several years;
at sonme recent point there was a substantial change in gas
prices and thus the value of the basins.

5:06: 34 PM
M5. RUTHERFORD replied that they could get him that information

and a nenber of the admnistration was available for questions
on the subject.

SENATOR STEDMAN said he’s interested in the tineline and the
i npact of the revenue streamon the state.

The commttee took an at-ease from5:08:22 PMto 5:25:06 PM

5:25:23 PM

CHAIR HUGG NS said it is clear that different people hear
different things in statenments. He asked the presenters to talk
about the inducenent act coordinator, and said he assunes that
the coordinator is also available for independent projects not
com ng through AGQ A

M5. RUTHERFORD said that was correct, and said that the citation
provides for the commissioner to streanline such an alternative
process.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that it would be wise to open up the process
for the coordinator.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- March 28, 2007



COM SSIONER GALVIN said the way it is envisioned, AGA wll
result in a tremendous anmount of activity right away, and the
A A coordinator will be taxed. If an alternative project is
proposed, the adm nistration can provide a coordinator to focus
on that project.

5:28:42 PM

MS. RUTHERFORD added that the coordination process for any |arge
resource devel opnent project has elevated the awareness of that
alternative. The administration sees a lot of different parties
aski ng about that process, so the awareness and capabilities are
out there.

CHAIR HUGG NS said it is fair to say that the position is based
on precedence that there is a federal coordinator that already
exists, but wthout nuch experience. The capability is the
i mportant thing to exercise.

5:30: 19 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said he doesn’t disagree, but the position
is established and is intended to be an inducenent because the
adm nistration wants participants to accept its terns, and it
woul d be concerned if there was a nove to provide all benefits
to any project.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said he would appreciate an indication of where
nodi fications m ght be planned in AG A

5:31: 07 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said that Deputy Conm ssioner Marcia Davis
was working on anmendnent |anguage to be provided the follow ng
day; he wasn’t prepared to tal k about anmendnents that day.

CHAI R HUGE NS said he understood, but wanted to see those spots
at | east acknow edged.

5:32: 04 PM
SENATOR GREEN commented on the training program and expressed

the sane concern with that as with the coordinator, in terns of
it not being available to other projects.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 13- March 28, 2007



CHAIR HUGG NS said that was a good point; he would hope that
sone of the framework put together could be used for other
things for the greater good of the state.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said he sees a distinction between the
provi sions, and he doesn’t have the sane concern. A program w ||
be provided for any pipeline-related job.

COMM SSIONER IRWN said that is a real issue for the state. He
is not only concerned about workers for the pipeline but for
other industries around the state as well.

5:33: 53 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked the presenters for comment on abandonnent.

COM SSIONER  GALVIN said the admnistration is |ooking at
clarifying the arbitration aspect; there needs to be a bit nore
substance to the process.

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked for an explanation of the arbitration
process and how it would work if a conpany wants out.

5:35: 09 PM

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN said the intent is to provide an opportunity
for recognition that a project isn't economc and there’'s no
further reason to continue to spend noney, and also the
possibility that one party will take the position of uneconom c-
ness and the other party mght not agree. The intent is to
provide a way to select an arbitrator and then have that person
rule on the decision. The other elenent is further refinenent of
the term uneconomc; there shouldn’t be an inpasse that cannot
be overcone. The issue goes hand in hand with violation of a
| ease.

5:37:38 PM

SENATOR STEVENS asked about a situation wherein the state would
want out and the industry wouldn’t.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said that is an extrenely unlikely scenario;
the adm nistration is providing the opportunity for synetry.

COW SSIONER IRWN said a contract should treat both parties
equal | y.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- March 28, 2007



5:38:40 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said it makes him nervous that it’s agreed upon
up-front to pay the $500 mllion.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said that stipulation insures that the state

isnt going to create an out for itself; it denonstrates that
termnating a license will not be a unilateral decision.
5:40: 07 PM

CHAIR HUGGE NS asked where Conmi ssioner Galvin mght see the
scenario unfolding on the tineline.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN said he thinks there is no particular likely
place. From a |icensee standpoint, there would be concern it
woul d happen before an open season due to producer pressure.
They would also be in a |leveraged position if the FERC
certificate is achieved and the state decides to go with a
producer deal. The state also wants to avoid being |everaged by
requiring forward progress on the project.

5:42:52 PM

CHAI R HUGE NS asked about any concerns in a particular section
of the bill.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said there is a judicial challenge risk, and
the administration is trying to devel op | anguage regardi ng what
can be appeal ed or challenged. At sone point there should be an

ability to cut off challenging, and the bill wll reflect that.
Constitutional limtations are being exan ned.
5:45:16 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS asked about state procurenent code regarding
i ndependent contractors.

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said the ability to use that code would be
appreciated. The admi nistration recognizes that such provisions
were enbedded in the stranded gas act, but it did not feel that
it would be appropriate to put that in AG A The overarching
process was placed within the procurenent code, but it was
decided not to nention it specifically.

5:46: 32 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 28, 2007



COM SSIONER IRWN commented on the language in the bill, and
said that the admnistration is trying not to | ose nonentum

CHAI R HUGE NS asked about anot her section of the bill

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN comrented on a part of the bill that was
technically questionable, and said that there are a nunber of
different elenents that the admnistration is trying to clean

up.

CHAIR HUGA NS said it would be prudent for the commttee to wait
for the changes to be made avail abl e.

5:49: 32 PM
He then asked for comrent about certain dates and deadl i nes.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said the intent is to require commtnent to
an open season. That is one of the nust-haves and one of the
primary objects of the inducenents is the project noving ahead
under schedule. I1t’s not requiring anyone to break ground or
conpl ete construction, because that would be unreasonable, and
the schedule would drive the project with artificial deadlines;
however it is reasonable to ask for open season date, and a
conpany can commt to that in return for the inducenents. If not
it would be in violation of the agreenent.

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked what happens when a conpany is in violation
5:51: 52 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said that if the value to the state is not
di m ni shed, the conm ssioners can allow for nodification. If the
project does not neet those requirenents the state gives a
notice of violation and if the violations are not corrected, the
state gets its noney back, collects damages, and decides where
to go from there. The best-case scenario is that they would
abide by a subsequent deadline and would denonstrate non-
di m ni shnent of the value of the project.

5:52:52 PM

SENATOR CGREEN asked where that information was cited.
COMM SSI ONER GALVI N referenced t he page.

CHAIR HUGG NS asked if two elenents of the bill were congruent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 16- March 28, 2007



COWM SSI ONER GALVI N replied yes.
5:53:45 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked about definitions of terns on that page, and
if they could be noved.

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N said that was a drafting decision.

SENATOR STEDVAN said that in the case of a binding open season

there’s clearly interest in having open seasons after first gas
to allow other conpanies in. He asked for coment on the
construction process happening through open season.

5:54:57 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said initial open season will take place in
the first three years, and FERC certification wll happen by
year five. Wen open season conmes about, there wll be an

opportunity to expand the line design, and it may happen early
on, or it may need to be scheduled after the first flow The
bill 1is protecting from forced expansion which could delay
initial gas flow

5:56: 54 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked how a particular provision differed fromits
FERC count erpart.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said he would have to get back to the
comittee.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked for data on the 15-percent threshold
provi sion, and said he has heard that it may not be possible.

5:58: 01 PM
COMM SSIONER | RW N said that he hadn’'t heard that statenent, and
woul d be consulting with the drafters to find out if that was

proprietary or replicable.

M5. RUTHERFORD noted that the threshold was nodeled with outside
consultants and the adm nistration could provide that data.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- March 28, 2007



SENATOR STEVENS referenced a requirenent about rolled-in rates,
and asked if it is appropriate that the state get into that
business if the FERC could handle it.

5:59:34 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said that the FERC has the final say and the
state is not trying to take its authority. Having the applicant
provide for a certain result does inpact how the FECR feels
about the issue; it has to justify its actions. Wiile the state
does defer to the FERC, it wants to insure that the application
is favorable to the state.

M5. RUTHERFORD added that just as the upstream producers are
concerned about royalty versus regulation, simlarly the
executive branch is concerned about rolled-in rates inbedded in
regulation. It will affect that as nuch as it’'s able to because
of the interest to the state. The nodeling isn't superb
providing rolled-in rates for expansion shippers is critical to
expl oration and devel opnent.

6: 02: 05 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN said he had talked about getting the
explorers to be confident that they will get their gas into the
line at a reasonable tinme and rate. The state doesn’t have that
insurance if defers to the FERC, that |evel of wuncertainty is
enough to prevent explorers fromdrilling the well. Ideally the
explorer could rely on the state’s assurance and not have to
worry about that drawn-out process; the gas could be noving
within three years of discovery.

6: 04: 09 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if any difficulties are foreseen in getting
applicants to agree to AG A provi sions.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said it is incunbent on the state to package
both requirenents and benefits. The state can't expect to hear

from applicants that everything in the bill is fine; then there
woul dn’t be value in pushing them to accept it. The elenents of
the bill are neant to be beneficial to the state.

CHAIR HUGE NS said that Enbridge was not kidding about not
appl ying under the current form of A A, the state may run that
risk with other players as well. He suggested reexam ning that
risk.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 28, 2007



6: 07: 28 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said Enbridge made its position clear from
t he begi nni ng.

COMWM SSIONER | RWN added that there have been many discussions
and the ultimate goal is to get gas to market while encouraging
as many participants as possi bl e.

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked if any other conpanies have said they
woul d participate even if producers didn't commt gas.

6: 09: 19 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said that TransCanada doesn’'t expect the
producers to commt gas before it invests noney, and M dAnerica
will likely say the same thing. The issue with Enbridge is that
it doesn’'t play the gane that way; it works closely with the oi
and gas conpanies to build a project, and it is very upfront
about that. Its desire is for the state to do anything necessary
to get the producers to commit their gas upfront.

SENATOR STEDVAN said there seens to be only three viable
entities that have the financing and the gas to build the I|ine;
it’s a limted group that can finance. The mdstream entities
are TransCanada, M dAnerica and Enbridge; he asked if that |ist
is down to one.

6: 11: 42 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said unless there are surprises, there are
three alternatives to the producers doing the project.
TransCanada did not take itself out of the picture, and
M dAnerica can be expected to participate as well. Wat the
state needs to get out of AGA is a conpany willing to nove the
project forward; it has certain requirenents that are hurdles to
conpani es. They don't want obligations because they are solely
for the state’'s benefit. The Kkey 1is conpetition, and an
alternative to the three big producers. The state needs a
conpany to nove ahead, and sone conmpany wll be wlling;
conpetition is what it is all about.

6: 14: 47 PM
M5. RUTHERFORD said AGA will lead to a project truly in the
state's interest, but it doesn't nean a basin wll ever be

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- March 28, 2007



devel oped. TAPS is a nodel for what not to do; it has driven
away nmmjor players. The state doesn’'t want that type of nodel;
it wants a project in the state's interest wth adequate
tariffs.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said he can't stress enough that the state
needs a tough stance; not having control over expansion
provi sions would nmean the state would have no control over the
project which is essential to Alaska’'s long-term future.

6:17: 06 PM

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked if AG A was witten for one md-stream
conmpany.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied it absolutely was not. It provides
reasonable ternms for the producers and md-stream conpanies.
There may also be other players watching from afar that m ght
surprise the state. The state can't just favor a conpany wth
certain aspects. They all need a chance to apply so they al
feel a need to conpete; the conpanies are going to have to cone
to terms with what the state is asking for, and it can’t get
what it wants if there’s no conpetition.

6:19:12 PM
SENATOR GREEN asked for clarification on TransCanada’ s position.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said the conpany has said it would
participate to get to open season, but it was not sure it saw
the value in going from an unsuccessful open season to a FERC
certificate; it would prefer to put that noney sonmewhere el se.

6: 20: 51 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked if TransCanada was the conpany that said “no
custoners, no credit, no pipeline”.

CHAIR HUGA NS confirnmed that.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said that is inportant to distinguish that
Enbridge said “no producers, no pipeline”. The producers aren’t
the customer on the line. There is a novenent in the gas market
to have the consumer group nmake the shipping conmtnents; what
TransCanada was saying is it needs custoners; the credit is the
negoti able part. TransCanada is saying it wants to go to an open
season and if the producers don't come it wll turn to the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 28, 2007



state. The state is saying no; it wants to drive the project to
the FERC certificate. The federal government can play its role
and ask why the producers aren’'t participating. Stopping at an
open season is not in the state's interest.

6: 24: 01 PM

COM SSIONER ITRWN said that an applicant’s desire nmust be to
get the line built. There wll be a lot of real business
activity once an applicant is selected, and the state | ooks
forward to that.

SENATOR GREEN asked if a custoner is the sane as a producer.

CHAIR HUGA NS said no. He said that he heard that a certain
conpany’s ability to participate in the Al askan project was
di m ni shed, but that was debatable; he asked if other pipeline
conmpani es m ght cone forward.

M5. RUTHERFORD said the adm nistration has not had conversations
with other conpanies, but other parties are said to have been
wat chi ng the process cl osely.

6: 26: 47 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said it would be hard to finance a project
wi thout using the wherewithal of the three majors; there may be
utility conpanies without f/t commtnents.

COW SSIONER GALVIN said it is a matter of who nmakes the f/t
commtnments, not who puts up the noney. If the gas is there, and
everyone knows it is, participants will bank on it; they make an
offer to buy gas at the wellhead and nake a commtnent to pay
for the shipping. The rate-payers are going to nmake the paynent
that backs up the legitimcy of the comm tnent.

SENATOR STEDMAN asked for a list of wutilities that could
bankroll a $30 million project.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said that M dAmerica would know about that.
If the state asks today which conpanies are ready and able to
conpete with the producers to build the pipeline, the answer

woul d be that no one is inmediately willing to sign on; that is
why the producers have the state over a barrel. The true
guestion is, if the state can nove the project ahead, what is
the possibility that it coming to fruition wll drive the

aggregate of utilities to pursue that option?

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- March 28, 2007



SENATOR STEDMAN said that didn't answer his question; he wanted
to see a list of the utilities that could finance this project
wi t hout the backing of BP, ConocoPhillips and Exxon. The project
is a huge one, and it would be surprising if one of the big
three wasn’t needed for financing.

6: 31: 06 PM

M5. RUTHERFORD said the presenters didn’'t have that information
and were not suggesting that that would be the scenario; they
have sinply heard that there nmay be wutilities that nay be
willing to take f/t conmtnents in an open season so they have a
secured supply of gas; that’'s very different from building the
project, but it helps build the line.

SENATOR STEDMAN said he wuld believe that scale of f/t
conmi t nent s.

6: 32: 57 PM
CHAIR HUGG NS said the conmttee would neet again on Friday.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked where the $18 billion federal |oan
guarantee factored into the discussion, and which parties m ght
be eligible for it.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said while there is potential for utilities
to take a position, the admnistration recognizes that the three
producers are the focus. Mwving the project ahead creates the
opportunity for others to take a part in it. The federal
government has made a substantial offer for |oan guarantees;
what nobody knows is the real cost of making that commtnent. A
maj or point of discussion wll be the perceived credit
wort hiness of the project. The balance that everyone is trying
to find is creating a project that generates credit worthiness

that will make for a good |oan guarantee price that the federa
government is willing to buy.
6: 36: 04 PM

He said that the administration is suggesting that the state’'s
interest is in allowing the project to continue to nove so that
all options can be fully explored. The federal governnment can
choose to fill in the fiscal gap, which is currently unknown.
What the state needs is to ensure that comrercial and federa
participants are willing to invest in the process. The state is

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- March 28, 2007



changing the dynamic so that it’'s not just the state and the
producers in the ganme any nore.

6: 38:26 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS asked if there is any relationship between
conpl etion of the pipeline and | oan guarant ees.

MS. RUTHERFORD said there have not been regul ati ons pronul gat ed;
theres nothing in legislation that deals wth conpletion
i ssues. There has been discussion about the potential for the
federal |oan guarantee being used as a mtigator for project
conpletion risk, cost overrun risk, or a failed open season.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said there will be a new president; that could
change t hi ngs.

SENATOR MCGUI RE t al ked about a handout from ConocoPhillips, and
said that all the listed projects are under a colum for finance
sponsors; partnering is not an unprecedented concept. She asked
what the admnistration will do in terns of the RFA, and she
said she hopes it wll include submtting a letter inviting al
pi peline conpanies to partici pate.

M5. RUTHERFORD said it is hoped that coalitions will be forned,
and the state will try to reach out to potential applicants.
However it won't be a long list.

6:43: 00 PM

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N observed that the bill does have a provision
for the partial signing of interest in the |icense, because nost
projects are not conpleted by only one entity. The state is very
cogni zant of that fact; it’s in the state’s interest to continue
to nove towards FERC certification and bring nore players into
t he gane.

COM SSIONER IRWN said that is the flurry of activity he
previously talked about; people want to invest. He had the
privilege of wvisiting the Anerican Gas Association and its
excitement was huge. The need for energy is going through the
roof; other resources have issues, and Alaska is sitting on a
premum He comented that it was interesting that the |oan
guarantee escalates to keep up with the cost of steel.

6:46: 08 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 23- March 28, 2007



SENATOR STEDMAN said that without the three producers, the state
can't build anything. Wthout one producer comng to the table,
it can't get financing.

6:47: 12 PM

COM SSIONER IRWN said there are real business opportunities
and the state needs to be fair.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said the admnistration is not saying a
conpany will conme in and pull the noney out of the bank to build
the pipeline. The state needs a project in which the producers
will want to participate. The state cannot afford to satisfy al

t he producer’s demands. It has to change where it is going or it
will be right back to square one if it builds toward an open
season and then stops. At that point the state will be just as
vul nerable as it is now

6:49: 04 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said there’s a nmechanical process in building
the line, and TransCanada said it has experience building and it
doesn’t need hel p. However, producers are needed to finance it.

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said TransCanada isn't going to ask the
producers to finance the line, but it will ask themto commt to
it.

SENATOR STEDMAN said that if Exxon is the only producer, shipper
pay is the financial mechani sm

6: 50: 38 PM

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN clarified that the commtnent to ship the
gas is the key. There is security in the commtnent, but it is
the commtnment to nove the gas that wll finance the project.
The producers will have to nmake a business decision on the rate
of return. Sinply put, they are holding out now because they
want nore fromthe state.

6:52: 01 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said that a small difference in debt ratio
percentage points is probably worth nore than $500 nmillion.

M5. RUTHERFORD said the $500 million is for noving the project
to open season and FERC certification. The debt equity structure

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 28, 2007



is a factor in ensuring the |owest possible tariffs, which
benefits shippers. The $500 million helps the winning entity
defray risks. The way that AG A is structured, the $500 nillion
couldn’t be rolled into the tariff structure.

CHAIR HUGE NS said tariffs were considered in the inducenent
rational e.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said that a five percent change in tariff
structure would equal $600 million to the state; ten percent
would be around $1.2 billion. Chair Huggins' statement is
correct and the debt-to-equity ratio is probably a nore
substantial driver to the value of the state.

6:54:59 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked why the rate shouldn’t be changed to a 75/25
ratio.

COW SSIONER GALVIN said there's a balance between the nust-
haves and what could be conpeted for. Anything lower than 70
percent would be unfair to the state. Mwving it upwards neans
running the risk of a conpany neeting all criteria but wanting a
75 percent rate.

6:56: 21 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said that other pipeline conpanies had suggested
rati os of 75/35 and 80/20. Based on those conversations he would
want to change the nunbers i mmedi ately.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said the decision is not for the pipeline
conpanies to meke; the producers shouldn’'t be excluded sinply
because the rate is too high.

SENATOR STEDMAN asked if there could be anendnent on that issue
to nmake sure the gas treatnment plant is included, as well as
year-round j obs.

6:58:21 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said it is his opinion that requiring the
building of a gas treatnent plan under AGQA would cause
conpanies to not participate in the process. The |anguage has
been adjusted to allow for inclusion of the gas treatnent plant;
as part of the application the conpany would have to agree to
the sane debt-to-equity ratio.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 25- March 28, 2007



COM SSIONER ITRWN said at no tinme in his participation in
previ ous negotiations were the producers ever wlling to discuss
the debt ratio. That nay have changed.

SENATOR STEDVAN said the lower the equity position and the
tariff, the better the state’s advantage.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that what energed in the contract didn't
have any reference to the comercial structure, but she agreed
wi th Senator Stedman.

7:00: 25 PM

SENATOR STEVENS said that in coastal Alaska propane is truly
important, that he wanted to know nore about taking it off the
line and having it delivered, and asked if there’'s been a study
on that.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said the Alaska Natural Gas Devel opnent
Authority has |ooked at off-take points and nethods to bring
propane to comunities; it identified nethods of transport I|ike
shi ppi ng down rivers or tidewaters.

SENATOR STEVENS said North Slope gas is rich in propane.

7:02: 37 PM

COM SSIONER IRWN said that is an issue that is inportant and
all Alaska wants cheap energy but would be satisfied wth
econom c energy. Wth the pipeline Alaska can prosper; it’s

important for the state’s future.

CHAIR HUGA NS said the nunmber of delivery points on the Yukon
Rover is arbitrary.

7:04:18 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS said he heard nultiple tinmes not to be too hasty
in the application process; naybe there is a novel approach that
hasn’t been brought up yet.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said the application guidelines are nust-
haves and it’'s absolutely sure the state has to have them to
nove forward. The admnistration is not going to get into a
negoti ation over what applicants are providing. The producers
just want broad objectives which put the state in a position

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 26- March 28, 2007



where other pressures are brought to bear. In this process, if a
conpany wants to be involved, it's up to the applicant to neet
t he must haves.

7:07:31 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said they had already agreed that if a conpany
goes in another direction from AGA, it could still build the
proj ect .

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said with regard to the training, that was
correct; the administration won't be closing the door to anybody
who wants to build a pipeline; the incentives are only attached
to AG A however.

CHAIR HUGA NS said there is a big contrast between the two
options; sone conpanies may have ideas that are better than the
state’s.

COM SSIONER  GALVIN said the admnistration isn't putting
solutions for dealing with the requirenents into AGA The
conpanies can use their creativity to solve the way they neet
t he requirenents.

7: 09: 32 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN said the admnistration is happy to make
anendnents to rmany aspects of the bill, but there are
fundanmentals to AG A, including the incentives and the nust-
haves. If those were to be taken away AG A woul d not work.

CHAIR HUGE NS said that is the admnistration's franme of
r ef erence.

7:11: 07 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN said the state has concerns about Kkeeping
applications confidential. It intends to provide for the entire
application to be nade public once the decision for acceptance
is made; applications would only be confidential before that
time. In nobst such processes, the winning applicant is nade
public and the losers are not, but the admnistration wll
require all to be nade public.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that the commttee wouldn't talk about
application criteria at that point in tinme.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -27- March 28, 2007



COM SSIONER RWN said the admnistration has put in nmuch tinme
and effort into AQA, and it is passionate about it.

CHAIR HUGG NS said the legislature is a cooperative entity.
There being no further business to conme before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 7:13:50 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 28- March 28, 2007



